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ABOUT OUR REPORT

The only way that a person can make a difference is to be differ

ent: It takes someone who

knows the value of what they have been given to understand what they have to give back.

It is this sharing of talent, time and expertise that shapes good
and good companies into committed corporate citizens.

Albert Einstein said: "The most important motive for work...and
pleasure in its result, and the knowledge of the value of the result

Community involvement is a cornerstone of Chemung Finan
Through the employees of Chemung Canal Trust Company an
poration donated more than 19,000 volunteer hours in 2001, co
generations ago. With these hours many times came funding
dollars last year was spread throughout our region in the form
and community sponsorships. These hours and dollars wen
diverse as the Valley Youth Soccer Association to the Arts of th

In this issue, we celebrate the spirit of community commitment

citizens into great leaders

in life is pleasure in work,
to the community."

cial Corporation’s culture.
d CFS Group, Inc., the cor-
ntinuing a tradition begun
t More than a half-million
of charitable contributions
 to support programs as
e Southern Finger Lakes.

You will see images high-

lighting a few of the many Chemung Canal Trust Company volunteers. You will see the
diversity of interests and talents that shine through to the next generation. You will see

the good deeds that are reflected back onto the community. It
when we say that we are “At the Center of Your Community,”

is with this in mind, that,
we are making a commit-

ment to honor our past, to engage the present and to enrich the future.

“I am of the opinion that my life belongs to the whole community; and, as 1 live, it is my priv-

ilege — my privilege — to do for it whatever I can. I want to be thotoughly used up when I die,

for the harder I work the more I love. I rejoice in life for its own
to me; it is a sort of splendid torch which I've got abold of for the +

sake. Life is no brief candle

woment and [ want to make

it burn as brightly as possible before handing it on to future generitions.”

— George Bernard Shaw

DIVIDEND INVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Registered shareholders of Chemung Financial Corporation,
through the Dividend Investment and Stock Purchase Plan,
may invest their dividends or make voluntary cash payments
guarterly to purchase additional stock of the Corporation.
Shareholders not enrolled in the plan may receive a descrip-
tive brochure and authorization card for the plan upon written
request to the Corporation’s Secretary at the following address:

Chemung Financial Corporation
Attn: Corporate Secretary

P.O. Box 1522

One Chemung Canal Plaza
Elmira, New York 14902-1522
www.chemungcanal.com

FORM 10-K ANNUAL
A copy of the Corpg

upon written reque
address noted adja

ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meet
Wednesclay, May 15

Design: Jim Pryslak
Photography: Frank|

REPORT

ration’s Form 10-K Annual Report is avail-
able without charge to shareholders after March 31, 2002,
st to the Corporation's Secretary at the

ent.

ng of Shareholders will be held on
, 2002, at 7:00 p.m. in the Clemens Center.

Pryslak Design, Elmira, NY
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION

(in thousands, except per share data)

OPERATING RESULTS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Non-interest income:
Securities gains, net
Trust & Investment Services income
Other operating income
Other operating expense
Net income

AT YEAR END:

Assets

Loans, net of deferred fees and costs, and unearned income
Allowance for loan losses

Deposits

Shareholders’ equity

Employees {full time equivalent)

SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA:
Net income

Book value, at year end
Tangible book value, at year end
Dividends declared

Shares outstanding (average)

RATIOS:

Allowance to total loans
Return on average assets
Return on average Tier I Equity

TRUST ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION
(Market Value)

As Fiduciary

As Custodian -

MARKET PRICES OF CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION
STOCK DURING PAST THREE YEARS (DOLLARS)

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

DIVIDENDS PAID PER COMMON SHARE BY CHEMUNG
FINANCIAL CORPORATION DURING PAST THREE YEARS

January 2
April 2
July 2
October 1

2001 2000 % of Change
§ 27,430 25,923 5.81%
1,100 750 46.67%
491 216 127.31%
4,537 4,799 -5.46%
5,180 5,017 3.25%
24,052 22,456 7.11%
8,493 8,755 -2.99%
$ 725,072 676,237 7.22%
423,755 394,572 7.40%
5,077 4,708 7.84%
520,687 511,388 1.82%
79,162 74,312 6.53%
315 308 2.27%
$ 2,10 2.14 -1.87%
19.66 18.18 8.14%
18.55 16.94 9.50%
0.90 0.86 4.65%
4,051 4,094 -1.05%
1.20% 1.19%
1.18% 1.31%
12.49% 13.92%
$ 927,937 1,033,619 -10.22%
446,681 485,225 -7.94%
$1,374,618 1,518,844 -9.50%
2001 2000 1999
19.25 - 20.50 18.00 - 24.50 26.50 -29.00
19.05 - 23.65 19.00 - 21.50 24.00 -27.00
22.80 - 29.00 19.13 - 20.50 24.00 - 26.00
28.00 - 30.00 19.25 -19.75 24.25-25.75
2001 2000 1999
$ 0.220 0.210 0.170
0.220 0.210 0.170
0.220 0.210 0.190
0.230 0.220 0.190
$ 0.890 0.850 0.720

As of December 31, 2001, there were 740 registered holders of record of the Corporation’s stock. Chemung Financial Corporation common stock is inactively

traded in the over-the-counter market.

The quarterly market price ranges for the Corporation’s stock for the past three (3) years are based upon actual transactions as reported by brokerage firms
which maintain a market or conduct trades in the Corporation’s stock and other transactions known by the Corporation’s management.




MESSAGE TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

JAN P. UPDEGRAFF, PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Byt our Annual Shareholders’ meeting held last May 10th, we announced a 10 per-
cent share repurchase program to be conducted, subject to market conditions, over
the succeeding two years. Our Board of Directors made its decision to launch this program, having
determined that the value of our shares represented an outstanding investment opportunity. Since
that announcement, we have reacquired 45,639 shares of our stock and have the ability to repur-
chase approximately 354,000 additional shares under this program. The Corporation’s stock price
increased from $19.50 at year-end 2000 to $29.25 on December 31, 2001.

I am pleased to report that net income for 2001 was $8.49 million or $2.10 earnings per share. This
performance is slightly lower than the previous year’s record results of $8.76 million in net income
and $2.14 earnings per share. The primary reason for the decline in net profits in 2001 as compared
to 2000 was a $550,000 ($332,000 after tax) loss related to our investment in a small business

investment company, which experienced a significant loan loss in the fourth quarter of 2001.

In September, our Board of Directors approved a 4.5% increase in the quarterly dividend paid to
our shareholders, the 22nd consecutive year in which the payout has advanced. This dividend per-
formance reflects an abiding dedication to the philosophy that cash returns to our shareholders are
an important reason to continue holding our shares as an investment that can provide a solid and

growing return.

While our past performance has been strong, the future is where we understand our constituencies
(shareholders, communities and employees) expect our focus to remain. During 2001, major cap-
ital investments were made in order to support our goal to retain and grow our client base. In order
to achieve this goal, we must continue our success at obtaining and building lasting business rela-

tionships. At Chemung Canal Trust Company, this is what community banking is all about.




In May, during the 25th year of its operation, the renovation and expansion of our Elmira Heights
office was completed. The people served by this office were fascinated and approving of the proj-
ect as it progressed, even as it necessitated closing the office for several weeks. At the grand reopen-
ing, it was my pleasure to introduce the first client of the Elmira Heights office. She was extremely

proud of her long relationship with Chemung Canal Trust Company.

During July, we celebrated the 50th anniversary of the first office in our branch delivery system.
Located on Elmira’s west side, we renovated the office for the occasion. The improvements includ-
ed an introductory site for CFS Group, Inc., our new subsidiary of Chemung Financial Corporation
chartered to offer non-traditional financial services. Rollout of its products began shortly thereafter
with services provided to existing and new mutual fund clients. Early results from CFS Group, Inc.,
operations have exceeded expectations and point to a promising future of non-interest income

growth.

Understanding that the financial services industry will continue to require our presence in advanced
electronic banking, September saw us add web banking to our delivery channels. This rollout was
followed in December by our new web portal, CCTC2me, which offers excellent customizable
options for all clients. While the foreseeable future will certainly require our physical presence at
the centers of communities we serve, the delivery channels of our industry are changing. In order
to remain relevant and build necessary relationships with our clients, we will change progressively

as well.

Since we believe that our future growth and prosperity will be driven by the quality of the rela-
tionships we have today and those we will forge in the years ahead, many of our resources will be
employed in that direction. The most important of these resources is our personnel who from their

hearts live this vision.

Jan P. Updegraff
President and
Chief Executive Officer




: ‘Smllzan‘n‘ Koehter {seated) and Denise Graham comprise the profession-

al team at CFS Group, Inc. This new Chemung Financial Corporation
subsidiary offers discount brokerage, investments, annuities and other
financial services. Its offices are in Chemung Canal’s Westside Branch
{bottom photos), which celebrated its 50th anniversary last summer.

-Many former. CCTC employees were on hand for the occasion. This
- office got a facelift before the-anniversary celebration, and was joined
Jin_having a new_look by the Eimira Heights Office (center photos),
~“whi¢h also had an anniversary celebration — its 25th — in 2001. Marge
""K'r‘ej'car,‘ Etmira H*é'i‘ghts r‘egi'o‘n:a‘I' manager and Jan Updegraff, CCTC

President/CEQ, cut the ribbon held by Joe Prunier, a retired CCTC
employee who is..on the Town of Elmira Council, and Ron Allison,
CCTC Community Relations Manager.
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Promotions

Thomas J. Whitaker
Vice President
Finance Division

Elizabeth T. Dalrymple
Vice President and
Senior Trust Officer
Trust and Estate
Administration

Amy E. lrvine
Vice President
Retirement Services

-

Gordon S. Shafer
Assistant Vice President
Mortgage Department

Louis C. DiFabio
Assistant Vice President
Commercial Lending
Department

Kimberly L. Lorson
Assistant Vice President
Human Resource
Management

Barbara A. Patton
Assistant Treasurer
Retirement Services

Joan M. Smith
Assistant Treasurer
Finance Division

Katherine E. Vail
Assistant Treasurer
Marketing Department

Retired

Michael J. Battersby
Assistant Treasurer
Branch Manager
Southport Office

Richard W. Carroll
Assistant Treasurer
Commercial Lending
Department
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Michael A. Pragle
Vice President
Mortgage Department

James F. Battersby
Assistant Vice President
Branch Manager
Waverly Office

Ly

Matthew T. Keefe
Assistant Treasurer
Network Operations
Department

John F. Nolan

Senior Trust Investment
Officer

Retired on July 1, 2001
after 34 years of service
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- 'MEGAN HORTON BRANCH MANAGER » OWEGO OFFICE
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Megan, a member of Tioga County Emergency Medical Services, teaches an
American Heart Association cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) class at an
Owego church. She also is a member of the Susquehanna Regional Emergency
Medical Protocol Board; the Tioga County United Way Board of Directorg; and, the
Fannie Hyde Trust Board of Directors.

The place to improve the world is first

E

one’s own beart and head and hands
- Robert M. Pirsig
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ALEX &, “PAT” GILLIAM

Pat is the Finance Minister at Faith Temple Community Church in Elmira. He also
is a board member at Three Rivers Development Corp.; is a member of the
Elmira/Corning NAACP and a Scholarship donor; is a Greater Corning Area
Chamber of Commerce volunteer; and an Ernie Davis Community Center member.

“What lies bebind us and what lies before
us are but tiny matters compared with what
lies within us.” — Ralph Waldo Emerson




Department and the Valley Girls Softball Association.
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Brendan coaches a Valley Youth Soccer Association team for children i Waverly,
Sayre and Athens. He also volunteers as a coach with the Waverly Recreation

Frrom what we get, we can make a living;
hat we give, however, makes a life.”

— Arthur Ashe




Martha is pictured with Jim Watson, CEO of ira Davenport Hospital, and is a mem-
‘ber of the no’t-forfprofit organization Quota International, which donated funds to
the hospital. She also is a St. Mary’s Youth Group fundraising advisor and is active
in the Bath Chamber of Commerce.

“For a community to be whole and bealthy,
it must be based on people’s love and con-
cern for each other.” — Millard Fuller




Ron coordinates and volunteers for the Reading Is Fundamental (RIF) p
Diven Elementary School in Elmira. He also is active in: Elmira Kiwatl
Downtown Development; Corning Community College Development Fpundation

where he serves as President; Chemung County Habitat for Humanity 4
President; Town of Elmira Recreation Commission; Chemung County C
Commerce; and Elmira Career Development Council. .
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s the Vice
hamber of
There are two educations: One should

ach us how to make a living, the other
ow to live.” — John Adams




Debbie conducts a youth choir at the Bentley Creek Wesleyan Church, where her
service includes the Finance Committee, Nominating Committee, Women's Group

“The time is always right to do what is
right.” — Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.
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Linda is active in the economic development committee, S.C.O.PE.D, wh
bring Logan Ridge Winery to the Seneca Lake area.
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[Talent develops in tranquility; character
2 the full current of buman life.”
- Jobann Wolfgang von Goethe
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ELIZABETH T, DALRYMPLE

Betsy meets with a resident from Woodbrook Adult Home on Elmira’s Southside
where she serves as President of the Board of Directors. She also is on the boards
of the Community Foundation of Eimira-Corning Area; Anderson Foundation;
Clemens Center; Arnot Ogden Medical Center Foundation; and, a member of the
Junior League of Greater Elmira-Corning.

“The great use of time is to spend it
for something that will outlast us.”
— William James




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

THE PURPOSE OF THIS DISCUSSION IS TO FOCUS ON INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS OF CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION. REFERENCE SHOULD BE MADE TO THE ACCOMPANYING
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (INCLUDING RELATED NOTES) AND THE SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA PRESENTED
ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT FOR AN UNDERSTANDING OF THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements included in this discussion and in future filings by Chemung Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”) with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, in Chemung Financial Corporation press releases, and in oral statements made
with the approval of an authorized executive officer, which are not historical or current facts, are “forward-looking state-
ments” made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993, and are sub-
ject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and those
presently anticipated or projected. Chemung Financial Corporation wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance
on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. The following important factors, among
others, could cause Chemung Financial Corporation’s actual financial performance to differ materially from that expressed
in any forward-looking statement: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, {3) competition, (4) changes in the regulatory envi-
ronment, and (5) changes in general business and economic trends. The foregoing list should not be construed as exhaus-
tive, and the Corporation disclaims any obligation to revise subsequently any forward-looking statements to reflect events
or circumstances after the date of such statements, or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Chemung Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”), through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Chemung Canal Trust
Company (the “Bank”) and CFS Group, Inc. (a financial services company), provides a wide range of banking, financing,
fiduciary and other financial services within its local market areas.

The financial condition of the Corporation should be examined in terms of the acquisition and deployment of funds within
its “market areas.” Management defines the market areas of Chemung Canal Trust Company as those areas within a 25-
mile radius of its branches in Chemung, Steuben, Schuyler, and Tioga counties, including the northern tier of Pennsylvania.
The Corporation’s lending policy restricts substantially all lending efforts to these geographical regions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Pursuant to recent SEC guidance, management of the Corporation is encouraged to evaluate and disclose those accounting
policies that are judged to be critical policies - those most important to the portrayal of the Corporation’s financial condi-
tion and results, and that require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. Management considers the
accounting policy relating to the allowance for loan losses to be a critical accounting policy given the inherent uncertainty
in evaluating the level of the allowance required to cover credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio, and the material effect
that such judgments can have on the Corporation’s results of operations. See note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
for a description of the Corporation’s policy with respect to estimating the level of allowance for loan losses.

MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK - LOAN PORTFOLIC

The Corporation manages credit risk, while conforming to state and federal laws governing the making of loans, through
written policies and procedures; loan review to identify loan problems at the earliest possible time; collection procedures
{continued even after a loan is charged off); adequate allowance for loan losses; and, continuing education and training to
ensure lending expertise. Diversification by loan product is maintained through offering commercial loans, 1-4 family mort-
gages, and a full range of consumer loans.

The Loan Committee of the Board is designated to receive required loan reports, oversee loan policy, and approve loans
above authorized individual and Senior Loan Committee lending limits. The Senior Loan Committee, consisting of the pres-
ident, two executive vice presidents, credit services division manager, commercial loan manager, consumer loan manager,
mortgage loan manager and credit manager, implements the Board-approved loan policy.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The Corporation, as a financial holding company, is regulated under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended
{the “Act”}, and is subject to the supervision of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal
Reserve Board”). Generally, the Act limits the business of bank holding companies to banking, or managing or controlling
banks, performing certain servicing activities for subsidiaries, and engaging in such other activities as the Federal Reserve
Board may determine to be closely related to banking and a proper incident thereto.

18




The Bank is chartered under the laws of New York State and is supervised by the New York State Banking Department.

CES Group, Inc., is subject to other regulatory authorities as determined by activities in which it may be engaged. For exam-
ple, insurance activities are regulated by the New York State Insurance Department, while brokerage activities are subject to
regulation by the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD).

COMPETITION

The Corporation is subject to intense competition in the lending and deposit-gathering aspects of its business from commer-
cial and thrift banking institutions; credit unions; and, other providers of financial services, such as brokerage firms, invest-
ment companies, insurance companies, and Internet vendors. The Corporation also competes with non-financial institutions,
including retail stores and certain utilities that maintain their own credit programs, as well as, governmental agencies that
make available loans to certain borrowers. Unlike the Corporation, many of these competitors are not subject to regulation
as extensive as that described under the “Supervision and Regulation” section and, as a result, they may have a competitive
advantage over the Corporation in certain respects. This is particularly true of credit unions, as their pricing structure is not
encumbered by income taxes.

Competition for the Corporation’s fiduciary services comes primarily from brokerage firms and independent investment
advisors. This is considered to be significant competition, as these firms devote much of their considerable resources toward
gaining larger positions in these markets. The market value of trust assets under administration totaled $1.4 billion at year-
end 2001. Relative to the Corporation’s consolidated assets, the Trust and Investment Division is unusually large and is
responsible for the largest component of non-interest revenue.

EMPLOYEES :
The Corporation and its subsidiaries had 313 full-time equivalent employees (FTE’s) on December 31, 2001, versus 308 at
the beginning of the year and 303 on December 31, 1999. The employment trend is relatively stable.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET COMMENTS

During 2001, total assets grew by $48.8 million or 7.2% to $725.1 million, as compared to $676.2 million as of year-end
2000 and $653.6 million at year-end 1999. Total loans, net of deferred fees and costs and unearned income, grew by $29.2
million or 7.4% to $423.8 million. Commercial loan activity, while slowing in the fourth quarter, was strong throughout
the first nine months of 2001, with business loans, including commercial mortgages, growing $29.9 million or 18.9% dur-
ing the year. Residential mortgage activity was particularly strong during the second half of 2001, with balances increasing
$8.5 million or 9.2% during the year. This increase can be traced to the lower interest rate environment, which not only
encouraged purchase money mortgage financing, but also resulted in increased refinancing activity. Total consumer loans
decreased $9.1 million or 6.3% in 2001, the major factor in this decline being a significant slowdown in indirect auto
financing activity. This resulted in a $12.0 million or 14.0% decrease in installment loans, which was somewhat offset by
a $2.8 million or 6.2% increase in home equity loans.

The carrying value of the total securities portfolio increased $17.0 million or 7.4% to $246.3 million. At amortized cost,
the portfolio was up $14.5 million, the result of leveraged purchases during the vear, as the Corporation purchased $30.0
million in federal agency bonds and mortgage-backed securities, funded with term repurchase agreements entered into with
the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. Unrealized appreciation related to the available for sale portfolio increased
$2.5 million.

Other significant changes in assets included increases of $2.3 million and $1.2 million in cash and due from banks and
premises and equipment, respectively, The $2.3 million increase in cash and due from banks is due primarily to higher
period-end branch cash balances. The $1.2 million increase in premises and equipment was centered primarily in an $826
thousand investment for renovations and an addition to our Elmira Heights Office, as well as $481 thousand for renova-
tions to our Main Office.

Primary funding sources for our asset growth during 2001 included increases in deposits, as well as, an increase in securi-
ties sold under agreements to repurchase and advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. In total, deposits increased $9.3
million or 1.8% from $511.4 million to $520.7 million. While period-end public funds deposits (primarily local municipal
deposits) were down $21.1 million, all other personal and non-personal balances increased $30.4 million. Much of this
growth, excluding public fund balances, was in personal and non-personal savings accounts, up $10.8 million or 13.2%
from year-end 2000 to year-end 2001, and certificate of deposit balances (including IRA accounts), which increased $13.8
million or 7.6%. Personal and non-personal non-interest-bearing demand deposits increased $7.0 million or 6.8%. The
$30.1 million increase in securities sold under agreements to repurchase relates to the additional leveraging during 2001,

as additional term repurchase agreements were entered into with the Federal Home Loan Bank. Federal Home Loan Bank

advances were up $4.2 million due to an increase in overnight advances under our line of credit.
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EXHIBIT | BALANCE SHEET COMPARISONS . poundec
%Change Annual
{in millions) 2000 to Growth
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 2001 5 years
Total Assets $718.6 $667.0 $642.3 $584.0 $539.2 $516.2 7.7% 6.8%
Earning Assets 658.8 617.4 591.6 531.2 490.9 469.5 6.7% 7.0%
Loans, net of deferred fees and
costs, and unearned income 416.4 382.8 346.5 311.7 291.3 2739 8.8% 8.7%
Investments (1) 242.4 234.6 245.0 219.5 199.8 195.6 3.4% 4.4%
Deposits 533.7 515.2 494.1 467.2 450.2 440.9 3.6% 3.9%
Wholesale funding 92.9 71.8 66.6 37.0 13.1 29 29.4% 100.0%
Tier | equity (2) 68.0 62.9 57.6 52.6 51.6 46.4 8.1% 7.9%

(1) Average balances for investments include securities available for sale and securities held to maturity, based on amortized cost, and federal funds
sold and interest-bearing deposits.

(2) Average shareholders’ equity less goodwill and intangible assets and accumulated other comprehensive income/loss.

Com-

pounded

% Change Annual

2000 to Growth

ENDING BALANCE SHEET 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 2001 5 years

Total Assets $725.1 $676.2 $653.6 $620.1 $545.5 $529.2 7.2% 6.5%

Earning Assets (1) 662.8 619.2 597.6 563.5 486.1 474.6 7.0% 6.9%
Loans, net of deferred fees and

costs, and unearned income 423.8 394.6 360.0 329.3 296.9 283.7 7.4% 8.4%

Allowance for loan losses 5.1 4.7 4.7 4.5 4.1 4.0 7.9% 5.0%

Investments (2) 247.5 230.7 2371 243.3 196.8 196.3 7.3% 4.7%

Deposits 520.7 511.4 481.8 466.1 451.0 439.6 1.8% 3.4%

Wholesale funding 1121 77.9 94.2 71.4 205 10.0 43.9% 62.2%

Tangible equity (3) 74.7 69.3 59.7 59.9 54.8 48.7 7.8% 8.9%

(1) Earning assets include securities available for sale and securities held to maturity based on amortized cost, loans net of deferred origination fees
and costs and unearned income, interest-bearing deposits, and federal funds sold.

(2) Investments include securities available for sale, at estimated fair value, securities held to maturity, at amortized cost, federal funds sold and
interest-bearing deposits.

(3) Shareholders’ equity less goodwill and intangible assets.

SECURITIES

The Board-approved Funds Management Policy includes an investment portfolio policy which requires that, except for local
municipal obligations that are sometimes not rated or carry ratings above “Baa” but below “A” by Moody’s or Standard

& Poors, debt securities purchased for the bond portfolio must carry a minimum rating of “A.” Marketable securities are
classified as Available for Sale, while local direct investments in municipal obligations are classified as Held to Maturity.
The Available for Sale portfolio at December 31, 2001, was $239.1 million compared to $222.7 million a year earlier and
$227.4 million at the end of 1999. At year-end 2001, the total net unrealized appreciation in the securities Available for
Sale portfolio was $8.548 million, compared to $6.069 million a year ago. This change is primarily reflective of the impact
that lower market interest rates had on the fair value of the bond portfolio.

The components of this change are set forth in the following table (in thousands):

2001 Unrealized 2000 Unrealized
Amortized Estimated Appreciation Amortized Estimated  Appreciation
At December 31 Cost Fair Value  (Depreciation) Cost Fair Value (Depreciation)
U.S. Treasury securities $ - $ - $ - $ 14,001 $ 14,014 $ 13
Obligations of U.S. Government
agencies 98,866 100,129 1,263 76,567 76,655 88
Mortgage-backed securities 92,539 92,993 454 87,692 87,129 (563)
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 17,497 17,729 232 18,421 18,532 111
Corporate bonds and notes 14,705 14,831 126 12,443 12,185 (258)
Corporate stocks 6,982 13,455 6,473 7,614 14,192 6,678
Totals $230,5689 $239,137 $ 8,548 $216,638 $222,707 $ 6,069




Included in the preceding table are 24,041 shares of USA Education, Inc., (formerly SLM Holding Corporation) at a cost
basis of approximately $2 thousand and estimated fair value of $2.020 million. These shares were acquired as preferred
shares of Student Loan Marketing Association (“SALLIE MAE”), a permitted exception to the Government regulation
banning bank ownership of equity securities in the original capitalization of the U.S. Government Agency. Later, the shares
were converted to common stock as SALLIE MAE recapitalized. Additionally, at December 31, 2001, the Corporation held
marketable equities totaling $616 thousand at cost, with a rotal estimated fair value of $5.036 million. The shares, other
than USA Education, Inc., were acquired prior to the enactment of the Banking Act of 1933.

Non-marketable equity securities included in the Corporation’s portfolio are 10,700 shares of Federal Reserve Bank stock
and 57,100 shares of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock. They are carried at their cost of $535.0 thousand
and $5.710 million, respectively. The fair value of these securities is assumed to approximate their cost. The number of
shares of these last two investments is regulated by regulatory policies of the respective institutions.

ASSET QUALITY

Non-performing loans at year-end 2001 totaled $5.633 million as compared to $1.707 million at year-end 2000, an
increase of $3.926 million. At year-end 1999, non-performing loans totaled $1.405 million. Non-performing loans repre-
sented 1.33% of total loans outstanding as of December 31, 2001 compared to 0.43% at the end of 2000 and 0.39% at
year-end 1999. The increase in non-performing loans is reflective of the impact that a slumping economy throughout 2001
had on our commercial clients. Included in the total at year-end 2001 is one relationship totaling $3.480 million, which is
greater than 90 days past due and still accruing interest. This relationship is well collateralized, and we anticipate that the
delinquency will be resolved in the very near future. Excluding this relationship, all other non-performing loans at year-end
2001 total $2.153 million, or 0.51% of total outstanding loans. Net loan charge-offs were $731 thousand or 0.18% of
average outstanding loans in 2001, compared to $707 thousand or 0.18% of average outstanding loans in 2000, and $517
thousand or 0.15% of average outstanding loans in 1999. The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2001, was 1.20%
of total outstandings versus 1.19% a year ago and 1.30% at December 31, 1999. In addition to impacting the level of the
non-performing loans, the weakness of the economy has also had an impact on the level of internally classified credits,
most notably reflected by a significant increase in loans classified as “special mention.” Several large loans were added to
this category during the second half of 2001, which essentially indicates that while the current credit risk may be relatively
minor, there is potential for further weakening of the credit, especially given the weakness in the economy. A more moder-
ate increase in loans classified as “substandard” is primarily due to the addition of one relationship, which was impacted
significantly by the recession. In recognition of the increased inherent risk in-the Corporation’s loan portfolio and the im-
pact of the current economic environment on our borrowing clients, particularly our commercial customers, the Corpora-
tion increased its provision for loan losses in 2001 to $1.100 million as compared to the $750 thousand expensed during
2000. The Corporation anticipates that this higher level of provision may continue into 2002 if the various credit risk indi-
cators noted above continue to show signs of increased inherent risk of loss.

CAPITAL RESCURCES AND DIVIDENDS

The Corporation continues to maintain a strong capital position. Tangible shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2001, was
$74.7 million or 10.30% of total assets compared to $69.3 million or 10.24% of total assets a year earlier and $59.7 mil-
lion or 9.13% at December 31, 1999. Major factors influencing this increase were an increase in undistributed earnings (net
income less dividends declared) of $4.9 million and a $1.5 million increase in accumulated other comprehensive income due
to the increase in net unrealized gains on available for sale securities. As of December 31, 2001, the Corporation’s ratio of
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets was 16.87% compared to 17.31% a year earlier. The Corporation’s leverage ratio
{Tier I Capital/Average Assets) was 9.86% at December 31, 2001, and 9.91% at December 31, 2000.

Under Federal Reserve regulations (see Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements), the Bank is limited in the amount
it may loan to the Corporation, unless such loans are collateralized by specific obligations. At December 31, 2001, the maxi-
mum amount available for transfer from the Bank to the Corporation in the form of unsecured loans was $1.8 million.
There were no such loans extended during 2001 and 2000, and none are anticipated during 2002. The Bank is subject to
legal limitations on the amount of dividends that can be paid to the Corporation without prior regulatory approval. Divi-
dends are limited to retained net profits, as defined by regulations, for the current year and the two preceding years. At
December 31, 2001, $11.0 million was available for the declaration of dividends.

Cash dividends declared amounted to $3.584 million in 2001, versus $3.473 million in 2000 and $3.097 million in 1999.
Dividends declared during 2001 amounted to 42.2% of net income, compared 10 39.7% and 36.9% of 2000 and 1999 net
income, respectively. It is management’s objective to continue generating sufficient capital internally, while retaining an
adequate dividend payout ratio.
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TREASURY SHARES

When shares of the Corporation become available in the market, we may purchase them after careful consideration of our
capital position. On May 10, 2001, the Corporation announced that its Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up
to 400,000 shares, or approximately 10% of its outstanding common shares, principally through open market transactions
from time to time as market conditions warrant over a two-year period. During 2001, 97,275 shares were purchased at a
total cost of $2.343 million or an average price of $24.09 per share. Of the total number of shares purchased during 2001,
45,639 were purchased subsequent to the announcement of the share repurchase program, leaving the Corporation the abil-
ity to repurchase approximately 354,000 shares as of December 31, 2001, under the current Board authorization. During
2000, 19,068 shares were purchased at a total cost of $397 thousand or an average price of $20.83 per share, and in 1999
there were 58,674 shares purchased at a total cost of $1.465 million (average of $24.96 per share).

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Consolidated net income for 2001 totaled $8.493 million versus $8.755 million in 2000, a decrease of $262 thousand
(3.0%), or $2.10 per share versus $2.14 per share, down 1.9% on 43,467 fewer average shares outstanding. In 1999, the
Corporation earned $8.392 million. Dividends declared totaled $0.90 per share versus $0.86 in 2000 and $0.76 in 1999.

Performance in 2001 was adversely impacted by a deteriorating economic environment, and the impact of this environment
on our clients. In recognition of this, and after a thorough review of our loan portfolio, management decided to increase
the provision for loan losses by $350 thousand in 2001, from $750 thousand to $1.1 million, with $300 thousand of this
increase recognized in the fourth quarter. Additionally, during the fourth quarter, we recognized a $550 thousand
write-down of an investment in a small business investment company limited partnership, Cephas Capital Partners, L.P.
(“Cephas™). Our investment in Cephas at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000 totaled $2.877 million and $2.351
million, respectively. Because the Corporation’s percentage ownership in this partnership exceeds 20%, the equity method
of accounting is utilized, such that the Corporation’s percentage of the partnership’s income is recognized as income on its
investment; and likewise, any loss by the partnership is recognized as a loss on the Corporation’s investment. During the
fourth quarter of 2001, Cephas recognized a large loan loss, which resulted in the above write-down. While financing pro-
vided by Cephas has greater inherent risk than traditional bank financing, and could result in future write-downs if there
are additional loan losses, there also exists the opportunity for greater returns than experienced through traditional bank
lending. In total, the increase in the provision for loan losses and the investment write-down adversely impacted net income
by approximately $544 thousand or $0.13 per share.

Aside from the above two factors, the Corporation experienced strong growth in average earning assets during the year,
resulting in a $1.507 million or 5.8% increase in net interest income. Total interest and dividend income on earning assets
was $49.122 million in 2001 compared to $47.978 million in 2000 and $44.177 million in 1999. This 2.4% increase in
2001 can be attributed to a $41.4 million or 6.7% increase in average earning assets, offset to some extent by a 31-basis
point decrease in yield from 7.77% to 7.46%. The major factor related to the increase in average earning assets was a
$33.6 million or 8.8% increase in average loans, which in 2001 comprised 63.2% of total average earning assets as com-
pared to 62.0% a year ago. Additionally, increases in average securities and overnight investments totaled $3.8 million and
$4.1 million, respectively. Total average funding liabilities during 2001 increased by $38.4 million or 6.5%. Total average
deposits increased $18.5 million or 3.6%. Time deposits (including IRA accounts) averaged $238.2 million during 2001,
as compared to $227.5 million during 2000, an increase of $10.8 million or 4.7%. On average, insured money market
accounts were up $6.9 million or 13.1% due primarily to higher average municipal deposits. Average term repurchase
agreements and term borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank increased $24.6 million, reflective of additional lever-
aging during 2001. The above were offset primarily by a $3.6 million decrease in average overnight borrowings through
the Federal Home Loan Bank. Interest expense totaled $21.692 million in 2001, as compared to $22.055 million in 2000,
and $18.728 million in 1999. The $363 thousand decrease in interest expense during 2001 is reflective of the declining
interest rate environment throughout the year. While average funding liabilities increased $38.4 million, the cost of these
funds, including the effect of non-interest-bearing funding sources (such as demand deposits), decreased to 3.44% during
2001, versus 3.72% and 3.30% during 2000 and 1999, respectively. The above yields and costs resulted in a net interest
margin in 2001 of 4.16%, compared to 4.20% in 2000, and 4.30% in 1999.

Non-interest income increased $175 thousand to $10.207 million, up 1.7% over 2000. The total increase was adversely
impacted by the above-mentioned write-down of an equity investment in Cephas Capital Partners, L.P. Excluding the
impact of that transaction, all other non-interest income was up $725 thousand or 7.2%. Net gains on the sales of securi-
ties were up $275 thousand. The interest rate environment during 2001 provided opportunities to realize $491 thousand
in pre-tax net gains during the year without a significant sacrifice in yield. Other areas where we saw significant increases
included credit card merchant earnings (+ $287 thousand), service charges (+ $125 thousand), checkcard interchange
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income (+ $106 thousand) and cash management fee income (+ $109 thousand). Trust and Investment Services income,
the largest component of non-interest income, was down $262 thousand to $4.537 million. Much of the revenue from this
area is based upon asset market values, and this reduction in fee income is reflective of the impact of the general market
decline experienced during 2001.

Non-interest expenses increased $1.596 million (7.1%) to $24.052 million. Non-interest expenses for 2000 were $22.456
million compared to $21.631 million in 1999. The area having the most significant impact on the 2001 increase was
salaries and benefits, which in 2001 rose $1.094 million or 10.2%. Salaries and wages were up $598 thousand or 7.0%
reflective of a higher number of employees throughout the year. Pension and other employee benefits increased $496 thou-
sand or 22.9%, the most significant factors being a $419 thousand reduction in the net periodic pension credit, as well as
increases in health insurance and post-retirement medical expenses of $65 thousand and $50 thousand, respectively. In
addition to the above, credit card and merchant processing expenses increased $431 thousand, primarily related to an
increased volume in merchant deposit activity.

The non-interest expense increase was also impacted by start-up expenses associated with CFS Group, Inc., which com-
menced operations in September of 2001. Expenses of this subsidiary, relating primarily to staffing, training and other
start-up costs, totaled $100 thousand for the year. This subsidiary, which offers a wide array of uninsured financial services
including mutual funds, brokerage services, annuity and other insurance products, is expected to provide an important
future source of non-interest income growth.

While income before income tax expense decreased $264 thousand, income tax expense in 2001 decreased only $2 thou-
sand to $3.992 million, or an effective tax rate of 32.0% as compared to 31.3% in 2000. The increase in the effective tax
rate relates to a lower level of tax-exempt income in 2001, as well as the fact that in 2000 we received a $100 thousand
New York State tax credit related to a $400 thousand investment in Statewide Zone Capital Corporation of New York.

Com-
pounded
EXHIBIT Il EARNINGS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, % Change Annual
2000 to Growth
{in thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 2007 5 years
Net interest income $ 27,430 25,923 25,449 23,739 23,274 22,468 5.8% 4.1%
Provision for loan losses 1,100 750 673 800 850 742 46.7% 8.2%
Net interest income after
provision for loan losses 26,330 25,173 24,776 22,939 22,424 21,726 4.6% 3.9%
Other operating income:
Trust and investment
services income 4,537 4,799 4,813 4,505 4,079 3,719 -5.5% 4.1%
Securities gains, net 491 216 151 216 324 610 127.1% -4.2%
Other income 5,179 5,017 4,442 3,496 3,065 2,777 3.2% 13.3%
Total other
operating income 10,207 10,032 9,406 8,217 7,468 7,106 1.7% 7.5%
Other operating expenses 24,052 22,456 21,631 20,473 19,368 19,408 7.1% 4.4%
Income before income
tax expense 12,485 12,749 12,551 10,683 10,524 9,424 -2.1% 5.8%
Income tax expense 3,992 3,994 4,159 3,386 3,667 3,266 -0.1% 4.1%
Net income $ 8,493 8,755 8,392 7,297 6,857 6,158 -3.0% 6.6%
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EXHIBIT I11

AVERAGE BALANCES AND YIELDS
For the purpose of the table below, nonaccruing loans are included in the daily average loan amounts outstanding.

Daily balances were used for average balance computations. Investment securities are stated at amortized cost. No tax

equivalent adjustments have been made in calculating yields on obligations of states and political subdivisions.

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY, INTEREST RATES AND INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS

Earning assets:

Loans

Taxable securities
Tax-exempt securities
Federal funds sold
Interest-bearing deposits

Total earning assets

Non-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks
Premises and equipment, net
Other assets
Allowance for loan losses
Intangibles and AFS valuation
allowance
Total

(Dollars in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits

Savings and insured money
market deposits

Time deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank

advances and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Non-interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total

Net interest income
Net interest rate spread

Net interest margin
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2001 2000 1999
Average Yield/  Average Yield/  Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
$416,370 34,046 8.18% 382,788 33,160 8.66% 346,550 29,446 8.50%
209,630 13,486  6.43 201,641 13,087 6.49 204,635 12,718 6.21
24,168 1,107 4,58 28,359 1,298 4.58 28,094 1,275 4.54
6,009 271 4.51 2,839 184  6.48 9,870 484 4.90
2,635 212 8.05 1,755 249  14.19 2,412 254  10.52
$658,812 49,122 7.46% 617,382 47,978 7.77% 591,561 44,177 7.47%
24,864 24,070 24,868
14,137 13,040 10,689
12,000 12,242 9,264
{4,832) (4,708) (4,620)
13,661 4,996 10,507
$718,642 667,022 642,269
40,553 432 1.07% 40,939 518 1.27% 41,596 525 1.26%
149,301 3,807 2.55 141,000 4,367 3.10 151,262 4,342 2.87
238,222 12,552 5.27 227,465 13,010 5.72 202,239 10,230 5.06
97,375 4,901 5.03 77,459 4,160 5.37 73,946 3,631 4.91
$525,451 21,692 413% 486,863 22,055 4.53% 469,043 18,728 3.99%
105,585 105,795 99,035
9,469 6,308 7,892
640,505 598,966 575,970
78,137 68,056 66,299
$718,642 667,022 642,269
$27,430 $25,923 $25,449
3.33% 3.24% 3.48%
4.16% 4.20% 4.30%




EXHIBIT IV CHANGES DUE TO VOLUME AND RATE
The following table demonstrates the impact on net interest income of the changes in the volume of earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities and changes in rates earned and paid by the Corporation. For purposes of constructing this

table, average investment securities are at average amortized cost and earning asset averages include non-performing loans.
Therefore, the impact of changing levels of non-performing loans is reflected in the change due to rate, but does not affect
changes due to volume. No tax equivalent adjustments were made.

INTEREST INCOME (in thousands)

Loans

Taxable investment securities
Tax-exempt investment securities
Federal funds sold
Interest-bearing deposits

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE (in thousands)
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Savings and insured money market deposits
Time deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank

advances and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase
Total interest expense

Net interest income

EXHIBIT V

SELECTED PER SHARE DATA

ON COMMON SHARES

Net income per share

Dividends declared

Tangible book value

Market price at 12/31

Average shares outstanding (in thousands)

EXHIBIT VI

SELECTED RATIOS

Return on average assets

Return on average tier | equity (1)
Dividend yield at year end
Dividend payout

Total capital to risk adjusted assets
Tier | capital to risk adjusted assets
Tier | leverage ratio

Loans to deposits

Allowance for loan losses to total loans

2001 vs. 2000

increase/(Decrease)

2000 vs. 1999

Increase/(Decrease)

Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans

Non-performing loans to total loans
Net interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio (2)

Total Due to Due to Total Due to Due to
Change Volume Rate Change Volume Rate
$ 886 2,795 (1,909) 3,714 3,147 567

399 520 (121) 369 (191) 560
(191) (191) o] 23 12 1

87 156 (69) (300) (422) 122

(37) 96 (133) (5) (80) 75

$ 1,144 3,376 (2,232) 3,801 2,466 1,335
$ (86) (5) (81) (7) (7) 0
(560) 247 (807) 25 (308) 333
(458) 597 (1,055) 2,780 1,359 1,421
74 1,017 (276) 529 178 351

$ (363) 1,856 (2,219) 3,327 1,222 2,105
$ 1,507 1,520 (13) 474 1,244 (770)
Com-

% pounded

Change  Annual

2001 to  Growth

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 2000 5 years

$ 2.10 $2.14 $2.03 $1.77 $1.66 $1.48 -1.9% 7.2%
0.90 0.86 0.76 0.665 0.605 0.53 4.7% 11.2%
18.55 16.94 14.56 14.59 13.24 11.76 9.5% 9.5%
29.25 19.50 24.50 27.50 21.00 17.00 50.0% 11.5%
4,051 4,094 4,132 4,116 4,143 4,159 -1.1% -0.5%
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

1.18% 1.31% 1.31% 1.25% 1.27%

12.49% 13.92% 14.57% 13.88% 14.29%

3.15% 4.51% 3.43% 2.47% 2.95%

42.20% 39.67% 36.90% 37.56% 36.55%

16.87% 17.31% 17.30% 17.45% 17.44%

15.13% 15.49% 15.23% 15.27% 16.19%

9.86% 9.91% 9.49% 9.57% 9.49%

81.38% 77.16% 74.72% 70.63% 65.84%

1.20% 1.19% 1.30% 1.37% 1.40%

90.1% 276% 332% 92.9% 257%

1.33% 0.43% 0.39% 1.47% 0.54%

3.33% 3.24% 3.48% 3.62% 3.89%

4.16% 4.20% 4.30% 4.47% 4.74%

62.06% 60.54% 60.09% 61.97% 60.84%

(1) Average Tier I Equity is average shareholders’ equity less average goodwill and intangible assets and average accumulated other comprehensive

income/loss.

(2} Efficiency ratio is operating expenses adjusted for amortization of goodwil! and intangible assets and stock donations divided by net interest
income plus other operating income adjusted for non-taxable gains on stock donations.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS.

During 2001, cash and cash equivalents increased $2.217 million as compared to a decrease of $3.909 million in 2000, and a
$3.253 million increase in 1999. In addition to cash provided by operating activities, other primary sources of cash in 2001,
included proceeds from the sales and maturities of securities and student loans ($153.450 million), a net increase in securi-
ties sold under agreements to repurchase ($30.050 million), an increase in deposits {$9.299 million) and an increase in
Federal Home Loan Bank advances, net of repayments ($4.200 million). In 2000, the primary sources of cash included pro-
ceeds from the sales and maturities of securities and student loans ($58.695 million) and an increase in deposits ($29.614
million). The substantial increase in proceeds from the sales and maturities of securities and student loans is due in large
part to a lower interest rate environment which resulted in $83.5 million of federal agency bonds being called during 2001,
as well as an acceleration of mortgage-backed securities paydowns. The 2001 increase in securities sold under agreements
to repurchase is the result of additional leveraging during 2001.

Cash generated from the above activities was used primarily to fund increases in earning assets. During 2001, the pur-
chases of securities and the funding of loans, net of repayments, totaled $163.999 million and $33.276 million, respectively.
Other significant uses of cash in 2001 included purchases of premises and equipment ($2.727 million), payment of cash
dividends ($3.559 million), and the purchase of treasury shares ($2.343 million). In 2000, the purchases of securities and
funding of loans, net of repayments, totaled $42.679 million and $38.105 million, respectively. Other significant uses of
cash in 2000 included repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances, net of new advances ($16.300 million), purchases
of premises and equipment ($2.985 million), payment of cash dividends ($3.436 million), and the purchase of treasury
shares ($397 thousand).

LIQUIDITY AND SENSITIVITY

The term “liquidity” refers primarily to the expected cash flows from assets held and secondarily to borrowings secured

by assets of the Corporation. These two sources of liquidity have in the past been sufficient to fund the operations of the
Corporation, and the Board of Directors anticipates that they will suffice in the future. For this reason, the term “liquidity”
in the Corporation’s policies does not refer to proceeds from the sale of assets, although the sale of assets held as available
for sale is a source of liquidity available to management.

Liquidity management involves the ability to meet the cash flow requirements of deposit customers, borrowers, and the
operating, investing, and financing activities of the Corporation. Management of interest rate sensitivity seeks to avoid
fluctuating net interest margins and to enhance consistent growth of net interest income through periods of changing
interest rates.

As intermediaries between borrowers and savers, commercial banks incur both interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The
Corporation’s Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO) has the strategic responsibility for setting the policy guidelines on accept-
able exposure to these areas. These guidelines contain specific measures and limits regarding these risks, which are moni-
tored on a regular basis. The ALCO is made up of the president, two executive vice presidents, asset liability management
officer, senior lending officer, senior marketing officer, chief financial officer, and others representing key functions.

The Corporation is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLB™) in order to access borrowings
which enhance management’s ability to satisfy future liquidity needs. The Corporation maintained a $73.197 million line
of credit at December 31, 2001. This compares to $66.543 million at the end of 2000.

Interest rate risk is the risk that net interest income will fluctuate as a result of a change in interest rates. It is the assump-
tion of interest rate risk, along with credit risk, that drives the net interest margin of a financial institution. For that reason,
the ALCO has established tolerance limits based upon a 200-basis point change in interest rates. At December 31, 2001,

it is estimated that an immediate 200-basis point decrease in interest rates would negatively impact net interest income by
13.5% and an immediate 200-basis point increase would negatively impact net interest income by 1.4%. The risk to declin-
ing interest rates is slightly over the allowable tolerance of 12.0% established by ALCO. Management attributes this to the
overall low level of current interest rates and corresponding large percentage decrease that results when an immediate 200-
basis point shock is modeled. Also, the nature of the Corporation’s callable US agency portfolio, as well as potential pre-
payments in the mortgage-backed securities portfolio and mortgage loan portfolio, results in less interest income in periods
of declining interest rates, as called bonds and increased prepayments result in higher levels of repricing of assets at lower
rates. Although currently outside of the policy guideline, management is comfortable with this exposure, as an immediate
decrease in interest rates across the yield curve is unlikely at this time.

A related component of interest rate risk is the expectation that the market value of our capital account will fluctuate with
changes in interest rates. This component is a direct corollary to the earnings-impact component: An institution exposed to
earnings erosion is also exposed to shrinkage in market value. At December 31, 2001, it is estimated that an immediate

200-basis point increase in interest rates would negatively impact the market value of our capital account by 13.6% and an




immediate 200-basis point decrease in interest rates would negatively impact the market value by 3.9%. Both are within
the established tolerance limit of 15.0%.

Management does recognize the need for certain hedging strategies during periods of anticipated higher fluctuations in
interest rates and the Board-approved Funds Management Policy provides for limited use of certain derivatives in asset
liability management. These strategies were not employed during 2001.

The ALCO is responsible for supervising the preparation and annual revisions of the financial segments of the Annual
Budget, which is built upon the committee’s economic and interest-rate assumptions. It is the responsibility of the ALCO
to modify prudently the Corporation’s asset/liability policies.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This Statement establishes compre-
hensive accounting and reporting requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. The Statement requires
companies to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, with the instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for gains and losses resulting from changes
in fair value of the derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the type of risk being hedged.
This Statement, as amended by SFAS Nos. 137 and 138, was effective for the Corporation as of January 1, 2001. Based
on management’s evaluation of SFAS No. 133, the adoption of this Statement did not have any impact on the Corpora-
tion’s consolidated financial statements, as the Corporation did not have any derivative instruments, including derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts, as of January 1, 2001, or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2001.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangi-
ble Assets.” SFAS No. 141 supercedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and re-
quires that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, thus eliminating the pool-
ing-of-interests method of accounting. SFAS No. 141 did not change many of the provisions of APB No. 16 related to the
application of the purchase method. However, SFAS No. 141 does specify criteria for recognizing intangible assets separate
from goodwill and requires additional disclosures regarding business combinations. SFAS No. 141 is effective for business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

SFAS No. 142 requires that acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) be amortized over their useful economic life,
while goodwill and any acquired intangible assets with an indefinite useful economic life would not be amortized, but
would be reviewed for impairment on an annual basis based upon guidelines specified in the Statement. SFAS No. 142
currently excludes from its scope unidentifiable intangible assets recorded under SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain
Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions.” The FASB has announced that additional research will be performed to
decide whether unidentifiable intangible assets recorded under SFAS No. 72 should be accounted for similarly to goodwill
under SFAS No. 142. However, issuance of a final Statement with respect to this matter is not expected until the fourth
quarter of 2002.

SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be evaluated for impairment no later than December 31, 2002, and annually there-
after. The Corporation expects that the results of the impairment test will conclude that the carrying value of its goodwill
is not impaired as of December 31, 2001.

The Corporation adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had goodwill of
$1,516,666 related to the acquisition of a bank in 1994. The amortization expense related to this goodwill amounted to
$189,583 for the year ended December 31, 2001. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Corporation will no longer amor-
tize this goodwill subsequent to December 31, 2001, which will reduce non-interest expenses by $189,583 in 2002, as
compared to 2001.

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation also has an intangible asset of approximately $2,949,754 related to the acquisition
of deposits from the Resolution Trust Company in 1994. This intangible asset is currently excluded from the scope of SFAS
No. 142. The amortization expense related to this intangible asset totaled $397,719 for the year ended December 31, 2001.
As noted above, while the FASB is reconsidering the exclusion of this type of intangible asset from the scope of SFAS No.
142, at the present time this intangible asset will continue to be amortized.

;Zé & @m‘?g ,
John R. Battersby, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

The consolidated financial statements appearing in this annual report have been prepared by the Cor-
poration in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The primary responsibility for the integrity of the financial information included in this report rests with
management. The opinion of KPMG LLP, the Corporation’s independent accountants, on those consoli-

dated financial statements is included herein.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls that is designed
to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are executed in accor-
dance with management’s authorization and are properly recorded, and that accounting records are

adequate for preparation of consolidated financial statements and other financial information.

The Internal Auditing Department is charged with the responsibility of verifying accounting records and
reviewing internal controls. The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors whose members are all non-employee directors. The Committee meets with management, the
internal auditor and the independent auditors in conjunction with its review of matters relating to the
consolidated financial statements and the internal audit program. The independent auditors and the

internal auditor also meet with the Audit Committee without the presence of management.

Jan P. Updegraff
President and Chief Executive Officer

John R. Battersby, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPCORATION:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chemung Financial Corporation
and subsidiaries {the Corporation) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated
statements of income, shareholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Chemung Financia! Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.

@M@ LP

Albany, New York
January 31, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31

30

ASSETS 2001 2000
Cash and due from banks 29,023,378 26,726,373
Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions 1,357,999 1,437,728
Total cash and cash equivalents 30,381,377 28,164,101
Securities available for sale, at estimated fair value 239,136,669 222,707,143
Securities held to maturity, estimated fair value of
$7,318,438 at December 31, 2001 and $6,774,036
at December 31, 2000 7,116,489 6,565,869
Loans, net of deferred origination fees and costs,
and unearned income 423,754,548 394,571,609
Allowance for loan losses {5,077,091) (4,707,868)
Loans, net 418,677,457 389,863,741
Premises and equipment, net 14,750,014 13,597,641
Goodwill and intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization 4,466,420 5,053,723
Other assets 10,543,328 10,284,605
Total assets 725,071,754 676,236,823
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing 110,805,658 107,289,840
Interest-bearing 409,881,344 404,097,917
Total deposits 520,687,002 511,387,757
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 79,457,282 49,406,826
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 37,600,000 33,400,000
Accrued interest payable 2,106,972 2,126,723
Dividends payable 911,772 886,729
Other liabilities 5,147,149 4,717,273
Total liabilities 645,910,177 601,925,308
Commitments and contingencies (note 13}
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 10,000,000
shares authorized; 4,300,134 shares issued at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 43,001 43,001
Capital surplus 22,215,098 22,011,527
Retained earnings 58,257,076 53,347,621
Treasury stock, at cost (335,906 shares at December 31, 2001;
269,549 shares at December 31, 2000) (6,515,591) (4,735,401)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5,161,993 3,644,767
Total shareholders’ equity 79,161,577 74,311,515

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 725,071,754

676,236,823




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOMIE
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2001 2000 1999
Interest and dividend income:
Loans $ 34,046,041 33,159,628 29,446,584
Securities 14,593,404 14,385,016 13,992,910
Federal funds sold 270,611 184,377 483,552
Interest-bearing deposits 211,613 248,942 253,724
Total interest and dividend income 49,121,669 47,977,963 44.176,770
Interest expense:
Deposits 16,791,392 17,894,382 15,096,420
Borrowed funds 1,333,080 1,400,290 1,044,567
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 3,567,576 2,760,186 2,586,552
Total interest expense 21,692,048 22,054,858 18,727,539
Net interest income 27,429,621 25,923,105 25,449,231
Provision for loan losses 1,100,000 750,000 672,669
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 26,329,621 25,173,105 24,776,562
Other operating income:
Trust & investment services income 4,536,702 4,798,724 4,812,723
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,614,820 2,489,887 2,217,859
Net gain on sales of securities 490,705 216,053 150,585
Credit card merchant earnings 1,280,013 992,578 769,586
Other 1,284,979 1,534,970 1,454,253
Total other operating income 10,207,219 10,032,212 9,405,006
Other operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 9,180,638 8,582,216 8,108,930
Pension and other employee benefits 2,663,166 2,167,209 2,457,172
Net occupancy expenses 1,946,355 1,878,329 1,838,431
Furniture and equipment expenses 1,751,991 1,893,852 1,713,266
Other 8,509,310 7,934,537 7,513,238
Total other operating expenses 24,051,960 22,456,143 21,631,037
Income before income tax expense 12,484,880 12,749,174 12,550,531
Income tax expense 3,991,628 3,994,075 4,159,030
Net income $ 8,493,252 8,755,099 8,391,501
Weighted average shares outstanding 4,051,022 4,094,489 4,132,148
Basic earnings per share $2.10 $2.14 $2.03

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Accumulated

Other
Compre-
Common Capital Retained Treasury hensive
Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total
Balances at December 31, 1998 $ 43,001 20,851,800 42,770,991 (2,970,954) 5,394,789 66,089,627
Comprehensive Income:
Net income — — 8,391,501 — — 8,391,501
Other comprehensive loss — — — —  (5,697,853) (5,697,853)
Total comprehensive income 2,693,648
Restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan — 1,089,829 — — — 1,089,829
Cash dividends declared
($.76 per share) — —  (3,096,546) — —  (3,096,546)
Purchase of 58,674 shares of
treasury stock — — — (1,464,675) —  {1,464,675)
Balances at December 31, 1999 $ 43,001 21,941,629 48,065,946  (4,435,629) ( 303,064) 65,311,883
Comprehensive Income:
Net Income — — 8,755,099 — — 8,755,099
Other comprehensive income — — — — 3,947,831 3,947,831
Total comprehensive income 12,702,930
Restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan — 159,332 — —_ — 159,332
Cash dividends declared
($.86 per share) — —  (3,473,424) — —  (3,473,424)
Distribution of restricted stock
units for directors’ deferred
compensation plan — (89,434) — 97,341 — 7,907
Purchase of 19,068 shares of
treasury stock — — — (397,113) — (397,113)
Balances at December 31, 2000 $ 43,001 22,011,527 53,347,621 (4,735,401) 3,644,767 74,311,515
Comprehensive Income:
Net Income — — 8,493,252 — — 8,493,252
Other comprehensive income — — — — 1,517,226 1,517,226
Total comprehensive income 10,010,478
Restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan — 137,878 — — — 137,878
Cash dividends declared
{$.90 per share) — —  (3,583,797) — —  (3,583,797)
Distribution of restricted stock
units for directors’ deferred
compensation plan —_ (14,927) — 14,342 — (585)
Sale of 30,130 shares of treasury stock — 80,620 — 548,851 — 629,471
Purchase of 97,275 shares of
treasury stock — — — 12,343,383) —  {2,343,383)
Balances at December 31, 2001 $ 43,001 22,215,098 58,257,076  {6,515,591) 5,161,993 79,161,577

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets

Provision for deferred tax (benefit) expense

Provision for loan losses

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts
on securities, net

Net gain on sales of securities

Increase in other assets

(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable

Expense related to restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities of and principal collected
on securities held to maturity

Proceeds from maturities of and principal collected
on securities available for sale

Purchases of securities available for sale

Purchases of securities held to maturity

Purchases of premises and equipment

Net increase in loans

Proceeds from sales of student loans
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase (decrease) in demand deposits, NOW accounts,
savings accounts, and insured money market accounts

Net increase in certificates of deposit and individual retirement
accounts

Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements
to repurchase

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock

Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

Income Taxes

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity:

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned

Issuance of restricted stock units under directors’
deferred compensation plan

Adjustment of securities available for sale to fair value, net of tax

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2001 2000 1999
$ 8,493,252 8,755,099 $ 8,391,501
587,303 587,302 587,303
(238,355) 364,908 45,955
1,100,000 750,000 672,669
1,574,857 1,508,703 1,468,561
(119,310) 143,105 473,074
(490,705) (216,053) (150,585)
(238,380) (658,738) (4,245,934)
(19,751) 516,881 181,282
137,878 159,332 146,896
(294,346) 313,269 874,023
10,492,443 12,023,808 8,444,745
23,295,629 25,222,319 12,238,709
3,745,029 7,140,429 4,529,397
123,067,813 23,679,881 65,470,707
(159,703,735) (37,579,602) (79,608,744)
(4,295,649) (5,099,603) (6,475,177
(2,727,230) (2,984,677) (3,505,619)
(33,275,746) (38,104,619) (33,738,401)
3,341,687 2,651,931 2,513,575
(46,552,202) (25,073,941) (38,575,553)
6,246,734 6,048,487 (10,265,077)
3,052,511 23,565,581 25,899,404
30,050,456 (539,665) (640,878)
12,600,000 13,400,000 29,700,000
(8,400,000) (29,700,000) (6,900,000)
(2,343,383) (397,113) (1,464,675)
629,471 — —
(3,558,754) (3,435,952) (2,944,859)
38,277,035 8,941,338 33,383,915
2,217,276 (3,908,795) 3,253,107
28,164,101 32,072,896 28,819,789
$ 30,381,377 28,164,101 32,072,896
$ 21,711,799 21,537,977 18,546,257
$ 4,138,230 3,608,962 7,048,403
$ 20,343 137,261 398,667
— — 942,933

$ 1,517,226 3,947,831 (5,697,853)

33




CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SU

NOTES TO CONSBLIDATEDSFINEANEAL
DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND

BSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS
1999

g

e g




1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ORGANIZATION

Chemung Financial Corporation (the Corporation), through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Chemung Canal Trust Company
{the Bank) and CFS Group, Inc., provides a wide range of banking, financing, fiduciary and other financial services to its
local market area. The Corporation is subject to the regulations of certain federal and state agencies and undergoes period-
ic examinations by those regulatory agencies.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles general-
ly accepted in the United States of America and include the accounts of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of rev-
enues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

SECURITIES

Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. If management has the intent
and the Corporation has the ability at the time of purchase to hold securities until maturity, they are classified as held to
maturity and carried at amortized cost. Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time or not intended to be held to
maturity are classified as available for sale and carried at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities clas-
sified as available for sale are excluded from earnings and are reported as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
in shareholders’ equity, net of the related tax effects, until realized. Realized gains and losses are determined using the
specific identification method.

Non-marketable equity securities are classified with securities available for sale. Non-marketable equity securities owned
by the Corporation at December 31, 2001 and 2000 include Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) stock and Federal
Reserve Bank (FRB) stock, which are carried at cost since there is no readily available market price for these securities.

A decline in the fair value of any available for sale or held to maturity security below amortized cost that is deemed other
than temporary is charged to earnings resulting in the establishment of a new cost basis for the security. Premiums and
discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment of yield using the interest method.
Dividend and interest income is recognized when earned.

LOANS

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal balance less unearned discounts and net deferred origination fees and
costs. The Corporation has the ability and intent to hold its loans for the foreseeable future, except for student loans, which
are sold to a third party from time to time upon reaching repayment status.

interest on loans is accrued and credited to operations on the interest method. The accrual of interest is discontinued and
previously accrued interest is reversed: when commercial loans become 90 days delinquent; and, when consumer, mort-
gage and home equity loans, which are not guaranteed by government agencies, become 120 days delinquent. Loans may
also be placed on non-accrual status if management believes such classification is warranted for other purposes. Loan orig-
ination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the loan as an adjustment
to yield, using the interest method.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable loan losses. The allow-
ance is increased by provisions charged to earnings and recoveries of loans previously charged off, and reduced by loan
charge-offs. The adequacy of the allowance is based on management’s evaluation of the inherent risk of loss in the loan
portfolio, which includes consideration of prevailing economic conditions, past loss experience, the level of non-performing
loans, delinquency levels and other factors pertinent to estimating losses inherent in the portfolio. Management believes
that the allowance for loan losses is adequate. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans,
future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions, particularly in New York
State. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Cor-
poration’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Corporation to recognize additions to the allowance
based on their judgments about information availabie to them at the time of their examination.

Management, considering current information and events regarding the borrower’s ability to repay their obligations, con-
siders a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the Corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is considered to be impaired, the amount of the impairment is
measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, as a
practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of collateral, less the estimated costs to sell if
the loan is collateral dependent. Residential mortgage loans and consumer loans are evaluated collectively since they are
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homogeneous and generally carry smaller balances. All loans restructured in a troubled debt restructuring are also consid-
ered impaired loans. In general, interest income on impaired loans is recorded on a cash basis when collection in full is rea-
sonably expected. If full collection is uncertain, cash receipts are applied first to principal, then to interest income.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Land is carried at cost, while buildings, equipment and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amor-
tization, Depreciation is charged to current operations under accelerated and straight-line methods over the estimated use-
ful lives of the assets, which range from 15 to 60 years for buildings and from 3 to 10 years for equipment and furniture.
Amortization of leasehold improvements and leased equipment is recognized on the straight-line method over the shorter
of the lease term or the estimated life of the asset.

OTHER REAL ESTATE

Real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure is recorded at the lower of the carrying value of the
loan or estimated fair value of the property less estimated costs to dispose at the time of acquisition. Write downs from the
carrying value of the loan to estimated fair value which are required at the time of foreclosure are charged to the allowance
for loan losses. Subsequent to acquisition, other real estate is carried at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
estimated costs to dispase. Subsequent adjustments to the carrying values of such properties resulting from declines in fair
value are charged to operations in the period in which the declines occur. Other real estate owned at December 31, 2001,
amounted to $82,035 and at December 31, 2000, amounted to $61,693.

INCOME TAXES

The Corporation files a consolidated tax return on the accrual method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and for unused tax carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled, or the tax carryforwards are expected to be utilized. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

TRUST AND INVESTMENT SERVICES INCOME

Assets held in a fiduciary or agency capacity for customers are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets, since such assets are not assets of the Corporation. Trust and Investment Services income is recognized on the
accrual method based on contractual rates applied to the balances of individual trust accounts. The market value of trust
assets under administration totaled $1.375 billion at December 31, 2001, and $1.519 billion at December 31, 2000.

PENSION PLAN

Pension costs, based on actuarial computations of current and future benefits for employees, are charged to current opera-
ting results. The Corporation’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to the plan sufficient to meet minimum regulatory
funding requirements, plus such additional amounts as the Corporation may determine to be appropriate from time to time.

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Corporation provides health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. The estimated costs of providing
benefits are accrued over the years the employees render services necessary to earn those benefits.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in 1994, was being
amortized over 15 years on a straight-line basis through December 31, 2001. Deposit base intangible, resulting from the
Corporation’'s purchase of deposits from the Resolution Trust Company in 1994, is being amortized over the expected useful
life of 15 years on a straight-line basis, See "RECENT ACCOUNT PRONOUNCEMENTS"” for further information regarding
the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets subsequent to December 31, 2001.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share was computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits and dividends. Issuable shares (such as those related to directors’ restricted stock
units) are considered outstanding and are included in the computation of basic earnings per share.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and amounts due from banks, interest-bearing deposits with other financial institu-
tions, federal funds sold, and U.S. Treasury securities with original terms to maturity of 90 days or less.

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

The Corporation enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase. The agreements are treated as financings,
and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The amount
of the securities underlying the agreements continue to be carried in the Corporation’s securities portfolio. The Corporation
has agreed to repurchase securities identical to those sold. The securities underlying the agreements are under the
Corporation’s control.
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OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation is a party to certain other financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk such as commitments under
standby letters of credit, unused portions of lines of credit and commitments to fund new loans. The Corporation’s policy
is to record such instruments when funded.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income at the Corporation represents net income plus other comprehensive income or loss, which consists
of the net change in unrealized holding gains or losses on securities available for sale, net of the related tax effect. Accumu-
lated other comprehensive income or loss represents the net unrealized holding gains or losses on securities available for
sale as of the consolidated balance sheet dates, net of the related tax effect.

Comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, was $10,010,478, $12,702,930, and
$2,693,648, respectively. The following summarizes the components of other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized net holding gains during the year ended December 31, 2001,

net of tax {pre-tax amount of $2,969,923) $ 1,813,563
Reclassification adjustment for net gains realized in net income during the year-ended

December 31, 2001, net of tax (pre-tax amount of $490,705) (296,337)
Other comprehensive income for the year-ended December 31, 2001 $1,517,226

Unrealized net holding gains during the year-ended December 31, 2000,

net of tax (pre-tax amount of $6,789,197) $ 4,077,592
Reclassification adjustment for net gains realized in net income during the year-ended

December 31, 2000, net of tax (pre-tax amount of $216,053) (129,761)
Other comprehensive income for the year-ended December 31, 2000 $ 3,947,831

Unrealized net holding losses during the year ended December 31, 1999,

net of tax (pre-tax amount of ($9,336,350)) $(5,607,412)
Reclassification adjustment for net gains realized in net income during the year-ended

December 31, 1999, net of tax (pre-tax amount of $150,585) (90,441)
Other comprehensive loss for the year-ended December 31, 1999 $(5,697,853)

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Corporation’s operations are solely in the financial services industry and include the provision of traditional commercial
banking services. The Corporation operates primarily in the geographical regions of Chemung, Steuben, Schuyler, and Tioga
Counties, including the northern tier of Pennsylvania. Management makes operating decisions and assesses performance
based on an ongoing review of the Corporation’s commercial banking operations, which constitute the Corporation’s only
reportable segment.

RECLASSIFICATION
Amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements are reclassified whenever necessary to conform with the cur-
rent year's presentation.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This Statement establishes comprehen-
sive accounting and reporting requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. The Statement requires com-
panies to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, with the instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for gains and losses resulting from changes in fair
value of the derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the type of risk being hedged. This
Statement, as amended by SFAS Nos. 137 and 138, was effective for the Corporation as of January 1, 2001. Based on man-
agement’s evaluation of SFAS No. 133, the adoption of this Statement did not have any impact on the Corporation’s consol-
idated financial statements, as the Corporation did not have any derivative instruments, including derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, as of January 1, 2001, or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2001.

Iin July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” SFAS No. 141 supercedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and requires
that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, thus eliminating the pooling-of-
interests method of accounting. SFAS No. 141 did not change many of the provisions of APB No. 16 related to the applica-
tion of the purchase method. However, SFAS No. 141 does specify criteria for recognizing intangible assets separate from
goodwill and requires additional disclosures regarding business combinations. SFAS No. 141 is effective for business com-
binations initiated after June 30, 2001.
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SFAS No. 142 requires that acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) be amortized over their useful economic life;
while goodwill and any acquired intangible assets with an indefinite useful economic life would not be amortized, but
would be reviewed for impairment on an annual basis based upon guidelines specified in the Statement. SFAS No. 142
currently excludes from its scope unidentifiable intangible assets recorded under SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain
Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions.” The FASB has announced that additional research will be performed to
decide whether unidentifiable intangible assets recorded under SFAS No. 72 should be accounted for similarly to goodwill
under SFAS No. 142. However, issuance of a final Statement with respect to this matter is not expected until the fourth
quarter of 2002.

SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be evaluated for impairment no later than Decernber 31, 2002, and annually thereafter.
The Corporation expects that the results of the impairment test will conclude that the carrying value of its goodwill is not
impaired as of December 31, 2001.

The Corporation adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had goodwill of
$1,516,666 related to the acquisition of a bank in 1994, The amortization expense related to this goodwill amounted to
$189,583 for the year ended December 31, 2001. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Corporation will no longer amor-
tize this goodwill subsequent to December 31, 2001, which will reduce non-interest expenses by $189,583 in 2002, as
compared to 2001.

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation also has an intangible asset of approximately $2,949,754 related to the acquisition
of deposits from the Resolution Trust Company in 1994. This intangible asset is currently excluded from the scope of SFAS
No. 142. The amortization expense related to this intangible asset totaled $397,719 for the year ended December 31, 2001.
As noted above, while the FASB is reconsidering the exclusion of this type of intangible asset from the scope of SFAS No.
142, at the present time this intangible asset will continue to be amortized.

2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANK ACCOUNTS

The Corporation is required to maintain certain reserves of vault cash and/or deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York. The amount of this reserve requirement was $500,000 at December 31, 2001.

3. SECURITIES
Amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale at December 31, 2001 and 2000, are as follows:

2001 2000

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
U.S. Treasury securities 3 - - 14,000,787 14,014,040
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 98,866,251 100,129,417 76,567,432 76,655,432
Mortgage-backed securities 92,538,928 92,992,484 87,691,888 87,129,166
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 17,496,893 17,728,855 18,420,899 18,631,434
Corporate bonds and notes 14,704,510 14,830,561 12,443,061 12,185,427
Corporate stocks 6,982,327 13,455,352 7,514,534 14,191,644
Total $ 230,588,909 239,136,669 216,638,601 222,707,143

Included in corporate stocks at both December 31, 2001 and 2000, is the Corporation’s required investment in the stock of
the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) carried at its cost basis of $5,710,000 and $5,245,000, respectively. This
investment allowed the Corporation to maintain a $73,197,400 line of credit with the FHLB at December 31, 2001, and
$66,543,300 at December 31, 2000. Other required equities in the Corporation’s portfolio include 10,700 shares of Federal
Reserve Bank stock carried at $535,000 at December 31, 2001, and 10,638 shares carried at $531,900 at December 31, 2000.

Gross unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale at December 31, 2001 and 2000, were as follows:

2001 2000
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Gains Losses Gains Losses

U.S. Treasury securities 3 - - 29,913 16,660
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 1,336,634 73,468 413,738 325,738
Mortgage-backed securities 631,300 177,744 239,965 802,687
Obligations of states and other political subdivisions 336,204 104,242 192,953 82,418
Corporate bonds and notes 310,123 134,072 101,166 358,800
Corporate stocks 6,481,357 8,332 6,679,193 2,083
Total $ 9,095,618 547,858 7,656,928 1,688,386
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Gross realized gains on sales of securities available for sale were $528,634, $1,388,358, and $150,585 for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Gross realized iosses on sales of securities available for sale were $37,929
and $1,172,305 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. There were no realized losses on sales of
securities available for sale for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Securities held to maturity of $7,116,489 and $6,565,869 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, represent non-mar-
ketable obligations of political subdivisions, usually local municipalities. Estimated fair value at December 31, 2001 and
2000 was $7,318,438 and $6,774,036, respectively. There were no sales of securities held to maturity in 2001, 2000 or 1999.
The contractuai maturity of these securities at amortized cost is as follows at December 31, 2001: $3,865,709 (fair value of
$3,901,901) within one year, $1,983,510 (fair value of $2,047,036) after one year but within five years, $977,270 (fair value
of $1,038,252) after five years but within ten years and $290,000 (fair value of $331,249) greater than ten years.

Interest and dividend income on securities for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1399 was as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Taxable:
U.S. Treasury securities $ 297,520 767,261 1,119,844
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 5,794,805 5,674,224 5,227,780
Mortgage-backed securities 5,933,499 5,190,539 5,201,842
Corporate bonds and notes 907,945 816,503 631,480
Corporate stocks 552,212 638,503 536,980
Exempt from federal taxation:
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 1,107,423 1,297,986 1,274,984
Total $ 14,593,404 14,385,016 13,992,910

The amortized cost and estimated fair value by years to contractual maturity (mortgage-backed securities are shown as
maturing based on the estimated average life at the projected prepayment speed) as of December 31, 2001, for debt securi-
ties available for sale are as follows:

Maturing
After One,
Within One Year But Within Five Years
Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 27,150,523 27,562,650 30,517,922 30,733,922
Mortgage-backed securities 436,361 443,433 10,392,766 10,690,839
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 980,861 999,046 5,162,622 5,338,798
Corporate bonds and notes - - 5,072,720 5,248,750
Total $ 28,567,745 29,005,128 51,146,030 52,012,309
Maturing
After Five, But
Within Ten Years After Ten Years
Amortized Cost  Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 39,642,178 40,264,095 1,555,628 1,568,750
Mortgage-backed securities 33,472,881 33,606,877 48,236,920 48,251,335
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 11,298,550 11,335,683 54,860 55,428
Corporate bonds and notes 2,271,988 2,214,500 7,359,802 7,367,311
Total $ 86,685,597 87,421,065 57,207,210 57,242,824

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities above because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obliga-
tions with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The fair value of securities pledged to secure public funds on deposit or for other purposes as required by law was
$184,468,089 at December 31, 2001, and $167,221,355 at December 31, 2000. This includes mortgage-backed securities total-
ing $32,337,636 and $28,418,761 (fair value of $32,376,437 and $27,976,040), and obligations of U.S. Government agencies
totaling $61,763,587 and $38,474,622 (fair value of $62,332,729 and $38,271,246) pledged to secure securities sold under
agreements to repurchase at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

There are no securities of a single issuer (other than securities of the U.S. Government and its agencies) that exceed 10%
of shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2001 or 2000.
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The Corporation has equity investments in Southern Tier Business Development, LLC and Cephas Capital Partners, L.P.
These small business investment companies were established for the purpose of providing financing to small businesses
in market areas served by the Corporation, including minority-owned small businesses and those that are anticipated to
create jobs for the low-to-moderate income levels in the targeted areas. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, these invest-
ments totaled $2,967,300 and $2,392,143, respectively, are included in other assets, and are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting.

4. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
The composition of the loan portfolio is summarized as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2001 2000
Residential mortgages $ 101,168,582 92,626,675
Commercial mortgages 48,510,572 43,272,341
Commercial, financial and agricultural 139,821,707 115,176,298
Consumer loans 134,626,731 143,742,646
Net deferred origination fees and costs, and unearned income (373,044) (246,351)

$ 423,754,548 394,571,609

Inctuded in consumer loans are student loans totaling $4,191,072 at December 31, 2001, and $3,853,277 at December 31,
2000, which are considered held for sale once these loans enter repayment status.

Residential mortgages totaling $83,078,601 at December 31, 2001, and $79,067,465 at December 31, 2000, were pledged
under a blanket collateral agreement for the Corporation’s line of credit with the FHLB.

The Corporation’s market area encompasses the New York State counties of Chemung, Steuben, Schuyler and Tioga, as
well as the Northern Tier of Pennsylvania. Substantially all of the Corporation’s outstanding loans are with borrowers living
or doing business within 25 miles of the Corporation’s branches in these counties. The Corporation’s concentrations of
credit risk by loan type are reflected in the preceding table. The concentrations of credit risk with standby letters of credit,
committed lines of credit and commitments to originate new loans, generally follow the loan classifications in the table
above. Other than general economic risks, management is not aware of any material concentrations of credit risk to any
industry or individual borrower.

The following table summarizes the Corporation’s non-performing loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000

Non-accrual loans $ 1,490,081 1,078,240
Troubled debt restructurings 77,516 404,476
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest 4,065,288 223,974
$ 5,632,885 1,706,690

The effect of non-accrual loans on interest income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was not material.
The Corporation is not committed to advance additional funds to borrowers with non-performing loans.

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Balances at January 1 $ 4,707,868 4,665,093 4,509,185
Provision charged to operations 1,100,000 750,000 672,669
Loans charged off (949,692) (853,409) {690,034)
Recoveries 218,915 146,184 173,273
Balances at December 31 $ 5,077,091 4,707,868 4,665,093

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the recorded investment in loans that are considered to be impaired totaled $746,734 and
$816,326, respectively. Included in the 2001 amount are impaired loans of $428,779 for which the related allowance for
loan losses is $278,344. The 2000 amount includes $367,951 of impaired loans with a related allowance for loan losses of
$200,839. The average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $849,892, $744,081 and
$3,171,533, respectively. The effect on interest income for impaired loans was not material to the consolidated financial
statements in 2001, 2000 or 1999.
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5. PREMISES & EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

2001 2000
Land $ 2,681,408 2,681,408
Buildings 16,433,926 15,030,100
Equipment and furniture 17,327,476 16,044,062
Leasehold improvements 432,876 431,448
36,875,686 34,187,018
Less accumulated depreciation 22,125,672 20,589,377
$ 14,750,014 13,597,641
6. DEPCSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:
2001 2000
Non-interest-bearing demand deposits $ 110,805,658 107,289,840
Interest-bearing demand deposits 39,331,058 39,128,338
insured money market accounts 44,598,178 53,146,665
Savings deposits 96,036,417 84,959,734
Time deposits 229,915,691 226,863,180
$ 520,687,002 511,387,757

Time deposits include certificates of deposit in denominations of $100,000 or more aggregating $57,522,689 and
$65,082,752 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest expense on such certificates was $3,207,552, $4,163,041

and $2,777,298 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2001, are summarized as follows:

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007 and thereafter

7. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TQO REPURCHASE

$ 178,142,448
28,611,412
11,499,316
5,872,145
5,768,125
22,245

$ 229,915,691

A summary of securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and

1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Balance at December 31 $79,457,282 49,406,826 49,946,491
Maximum month-end balance $79,658,810 51,003,367 53,731,116
Average balance during year $68,653,225 50,110,845 51,900,947
Weighted-average rate at December 31 4.68% 5.75% 4.97%
Average rate paid during year 5.20% 5.51% 4.98%

The agreements have remaining contractual maturities of 2 days to 9.2 years at December 31, 2001, with a weighted-aver-
age contractual maturity of 3.9 years. Certain of the agreements have call features. At December 31, 2001, the weighted-
average period to the earlier of the next call date or the contractual maturity date is approximately seven months.
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Information concerning outstanding securities repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2001, is summarized as follows:

Accrued Fair Value of

Repurchase Interest Weighted Collateral

Remaining Term to Final Maturity(1): Liability Payable  Average Rate  Securities {2)
Within 90 days $ 4,957,282 $ -~ 0.37% $10,147,954
After 90 days but with one year 20,000,000 148,894 3.49% 20,887,761
After one year but within five years 19,500,000 175,597 6.17% 19,905,783
After five years but within ten years 35,000,000 138,361 5.15% 36,287,218
Total $79,457,282 $462,852 4.68% $87,228,716

{1) The weighted-average remaining term to final maturity was approximately 3.9 years at December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2001, $54.5 mil-
lion of the securities repurchase agreements contained call provisions. The weighted-average rate at December 31, 2001, on the callable securities
repurchase agreements was 5.51%, with a weighted-average remaining period of approximately 10 months to the call date. At December 31,
2001, $25.0 million of the securities repurchase agreements did not contain call provisions. The weighted-average rate at December 31, 2001, on
the non-callable securities repurchase agreements was 2.87%, with a weighted-average term to maturity of approximarely 5 months.

(2) Represents the fair value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreements, plus accrued interest receivable of approximately $840 thousand
at December 31, 2001

8. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
The following is a summary of Federal Home Loan Bank advances at December 31, 2001:

Weighted

Average
Amount Rate Maturity First Call Date
$12,600,000 1.35% January 2, 2002 -
10,000,000 4.90% October 2, 2003 -
5,000,000 5.41% December 29, 2005 December 29, 2002
10,000,000 4.41% October 20, 2008 January 20, 2002

$37,600,000 3.65%

Residential mortgages totaling $83,078,601 at December 31, 2001, were pledged under a blanket collateral agreement for
the Corporation’s advances with the FHLB.

9. INCOME TAXES

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, income tax expense attributable to income from operations
consisted of the following:

2001 2000 1999

Current:
State $ 414,260 195,635 481,750
Federal 3,815,723 3,433,532 3,631,325
4,229,983 3,629,167 4,113,075
Deferred expense (benefit) (238,355) 364,908 45,955
$ 3,991,628 3,994,075 4,159,030

Income tax expense differed from the amounts camputed by applying the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate tg income
before income tax expense as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Tax computed at statutory rate $ 4,244,859 4,334,719 4,267,180
Tax-exempt interest (569,665) (641,915) (522,865)
Dividend exclusion (43,718) (57,865) (55,707)
State taxes, net of Federal benefit 243,268 207,909 371,094
Nondeductible interest expense 70,417 87,796 64,792
Other items, net 46,467 63,431 34,536
Actual income tax expense $ 3,991,628 3,994,075 4,159,030




The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax lia-
bilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000, are presented below:

2001 2000
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:

Allowance for loan losses-book $ 1,977,527 1,833,715
Accrual for post-retirement benefits other than pensions 773,433 750,598
Deferred loan fees 144,101 94,221
Deferred compensation and directors’ fees 751,490 691,179
Interest on non-accrual loans 40,526 24,525
Other 91,311 76,237
Total gross deferred tax assets 3,778,388 3,470,475

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:
Depreciation 120,735 178,370
Prepaid pension 327,591 276,766
Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale 3,385,768 2,423,776
Other 246,017 169,649
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 4,080,111 3,048,561
Net deferred tax {(liability) asset $  (301,723) 421,914

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income or the existence of sufficient
taxable income within the loss carryback period. A valuation allowance is recognized when it is more likely than not that
some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, management
considers the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax liabilities, the level of historical taxable income and projected future
taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences comprising the deferred tax assets will be deductible.
Based on its assessment, management determined that no valuation allowance is necessary.

10. PENSION PLAN AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

The Corporation has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees. The plan’s
defined benefit formula generally bases payments to retired employees upon their length of service multiplied by a
percentage of the average monthly pay over the last five years of employment.

The following table presents (1) changes in the plan’s projected benefit obligation and plan assets, and (2} the plan’s funded
status reconciled with amounts recognized in the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
CHANGES IN PROJECTED BENEF!IT OBLIGATION:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 13,998,022 13,021,081
Service cost 343,187 297,927
Interest cost 1,028,972 990,817
Actuarial loss 1,095,926 607,380
Benefits paid (916,119) (919,183)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 15,549,988 13,998,022
CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 19,355,021 20,423,565
Actual loss on plan assets (203,033) (108,791)
Expenses paid (37,494) (40,570)
Benefits paid (916,119) (919,183)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 18,198,375 19,355,021
FUNDED STATUS:
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation at end of year 2,648,387 5,356,999
Unrecognized net transition obligation being recognized over 10 years 420,126 490,014
Unrecognized prior service cost 646,575 721,391
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (2,5647,019) (5,595,059)
Prepaid pension cost $ 1,168,069 973,345
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Net periodic pension income in 2001, 2000 and 1999 is comprised of the following:

2001 2000 1999

Service cost, benefits earned during the year $ 343,187 297,927 320,308
interest cost on projected benefit obligation 1,028,972 990,817 986,425
Expected return on plan assets (1,419,320) (1,499,853) (1,437,813)
Net amortization and deferral (147,563) (402,536) (272,260)
Net periodic pension income $ (194,724) (613,645) (403,340}

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999 were as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Discount rate 7.00% 7.50% 8.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Assumed rate of future compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The pension plan‘s assets at December 31, 2001 and 2000, are invested in common &nd preferred stocks, U.S. Government
securities, corporate bonds and notes, and mutual funds.

The Corporation also sponsors a defined contribution profit sharing, savings and investment plan which covers all employ-
ees with a minimum of 1,000 hours of annual service. The Corporation makes discretionary profit sharing contributions to
the plan based on the financial results of the Corporation. The Corporation also makes matching contributions at the rate
of 50% of the first 6% of an eligible employee’s current earnings contributed to the plan. Expense under the plan totaled
$687,724, $681,193, and $620,279 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The plan’s assets at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, include 380,712 and 382,180 shares, respectively, of Chemung Financial Corporation common
stock, as well as common and preferred stocks, U.S. Government securities, corporate bonds and notes, and mutual funds.

The Corporation sponsors a defined benefit health care plan that provides postretirement medical, dental and prescription
drug benefits to full-time employees who meet minimum age and service reguirements. Postretirement life insurance bene-
fits are also provided to certain employees who retired prior to July 1981. The plan is contributory, with retiree contribu-
tions adjusted annually, and contains other cost sharing features such as deductibles and coinsurance. The accounting for
the plan anticipates future cost-sharing changes to the written plan that are consistent with the Corporation’s expressed
intent to increase the retiree contribution rate annually for the expected general inflation rate for that year.

The following table presents {1) changes in the plan‘s accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and (2) the plan's
funded status reconciled with amounts recognized in the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2001
and 2000:

CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION: 2001 2000
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,440,417 2,543,000
Service cost 25,000 23,000
Interest cost 210,000 181,000
Participant contributions 97,059 88,340
Actuarial loss (gain) 607,741 (74,829)
Benefits paid (310,545) (320,094)

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at end of year $ 3,069,672 2,440,417

ACCRUED POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT COST:

Unfunded postretirement benefit obligation end of year $ (3,069,672) (2,440,417)
Unrecognized prior service cost 352,000 380,000
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 722,410 133,669

Accrued postretirement benefit cost at end of year, included in other liabilities $ (1,995,262) (1,926,748)

The components of net periodic post-retirement benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are as

follows: 2001 2000 1999
Service cost $ 25,000 23,000 42,000
Interest cost 210,000 181,000 174,000
Net amortization and deferral ] 47,000 28,000 22,000

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $282,000 232,000 238,000

The postretirement benefit obligation was determined using a discount rate of 7.00% for 2001 and 7.50% for 2000. The
assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation initially ranged
from 8.0% to 8.5% in 2001, depending on the specific plan, and was decreased to a range of 5.0% to 5.5% in 2008 and
thereafter, over the projected payout of benefits. The health care cost trend rate assumption can have a significant effect on
the amounts reported. If the health care cost trend rate was increased one percent in each year, the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001, would have increased by 4.1%, and the aggregate of service and interest
cost would have increased by 3.4%. If the health care cost trend rate was decreased one percent in each year, the accumu-




lated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001, would have decreased by 3.7%, and the aggregate of service
and interest cost would have decreased by 3.0%. However, the plan limits the increase in the Corporation’s annual contribu-
tions to the plan for most participants to the increase in base compensation for active employees. '

The Corporation also sponsors an Executive Supplemental Pension Plan for certain current and former executive officers to
restore certain pension benefits that may be reduced due to limitations under the Internal Revenue Code. The benefits under
this plan are unfunded and as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the projected benefit obligation was $557,671 and $555,936,
respectively. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Corporation had an accrued benefit liability of $327,014 and $262,777,
respectively, related to this plan. The Corporation recorded an expense of $85,157, $62,989 and $44,138 related to this plan
during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Members of the Board of Directors, certain Corporation officers, and their immediate families directly, or through entities in
which they are principal owners (more than 10% interest), were customers of, and had loans and other transactions with, the
Corporation in the ordinary course of business. All loans and commitments included as part of such transactions were made
on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transac-
tions with other persons. These loans and commitments, which did not involve more than normail risk of collectibility or
present other unfavorable features, are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year $ 15,034,221 7,218,807
Additions 25,833,686 85,567,181
Amounts collected (24,700,933) (77,751,767)
Balance at end of year $ 16,166,974 15,034,221

12. EXPENSES

The following expenses, which exceeded 1% of total revenues (total interest income plus other operating income) in at least
one of the years presented, are included in other operating expenses:

2001 2000 1999
Data processing services $2,812,299 2,176,368 1,979,254
Advertising 729,223 708,449 646,594
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 587,303 587,302 587,303

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding various commitments and contingent liabilities, such as commit-
ments to extend credit, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Commitments to
outside parties under standby letters of credit, unused portions of lines of credit, and commitments to fund new loans
totaled $2,289,691, $126,866,745 and $9,726,476, respectively, at December 31, 2001. Commitments to outside parties under
standby letters of credit, unused portions of lines of credit, and commitments to fund new loans totaled $2,538,946,
$121,482,176 and $9,516,697, respectively, at December 31, 2000. Because many commitments and aimost all standby let-
ters of credit expire without being funded in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not estimates of future cash flows.
Loan commitments and unused lines of credit have off-balance sheet credit risk because only origination fees are recog-
nized on the consolidated balance sheet until commitments are fuifilled or expire. The credit risk amounts are equal to the
contractual amounts, assuming the amounts are fully advanced and collateral or other security is of no value. The
Corporation does not anticipate losses as a result of these transactions. These commitments also have off-balance sheet
interest rate risk in that the interest rate at which these commitments were made may not be at market rates on the date
the commitments are fulfilled.

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had outstanding commitments totaling $111,375 to fund equity investments in
Southern Tier Business Development, LLC.

The Corporation has employment contracts with certain of its senior officers, which expire at various dates through 2004
and may be extended on a year-to-year basis.

In the normal course of business, there are various outstanding legal proceedings involving the Corporation or its sub-
sidiaries. In the opinion of management, the aggregate amount involved in such proceedings is not material to the financial
condition or results of operations of the Corporation.

14. SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY

Under Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank is limited to the amount it may loan to the Corporation, unless such loans are
collateralized by specific obligations. At December 31, 2001, the maximum amount available for transfer from the Bank to
the Corporation in the form of unsecured loans was $1,786,985. The Bank is also subject to legal limitations on the amount
of dividends that can be paid to the Corporation without prior regulatory approval. Dividends are limited to retained net
profits, as defined by regulations, for the current year and the two preceding years. At December 31, 2001, approximately
$11.0 million was available for the declaration of dividends from the Bank to the Corporation.

45




48

15. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed parent company only financial statement information of Chemung Financial Corporation is as follows:

BALANCE SHEETS - DECEMBER 31
Assets:
Cash on deposit with subsidiary bank
Investment in subsidiary — Chemung Canal Trust Company
Investment in subsidiary — CFS Group, Inc.
Dividends receivable
Securities available for sale, at estimated fair value
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Dividend payable
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

STATEMENTS OF INCOME - YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
Interest and dividend income

Net gain on sales of securities

Other {loss) income

Dividends from subsidiary bank

Income before equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed losses of CFS Group, Inc.

Equity in undistributed earnings of Chemung Canal Trust Company
Operating expenses

Income before income tax benefit/expense

Income tax benefit (expense)

Net Income

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of Chemung Canal Trust Company
Equity in undistributed losses of CFS Group, Inc.
Net gain on sales of securities
(Increase} decrease in dividend receivable
Increase in other assets
Increase in other liabilities
Distribution of restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Investment in CFS Group, Inc.
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale
Purchase of securities available for sale
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash dividends paid
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Net cash used in financing activities
Increase {(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2001 2000

$ 1,015,508 911,957

74,816,630 69,599,138

204,858 250,000

911,772 886,729

154,044 1,154,920

3,004,165 2,422,256

$ 80,106,977 75,225,000

911,772 886,729

33,628 26,756

945,400 913,485

79,161,577 74,311,515

$ 80,106,977 75,225,000

2001 2000 1999

$ 87,215 88,450 93,060
60,000 - -
(270,166} 216,277 177,530
5,083,798 4,918,121 4,496,546
4,960,847 5,222,848 4,767,136
(45,142) - -
3,678,823 3,692,888 3,759,448
(105,181) (96,989) (76,032)
8,389,347 8,818,747 8,450,552
103,905 (63,648) (569,051)

$ 8,493,252 8,755,099 8,391,501
2001 2000 1999

$ 8,493,252 8,755,099 8,391,501
(3,678,823) (3,692,888) (3,759,448}
45,142 - -
(60,000) - -
(25,043) 62,528 (151,687)
(581,442) (234,515) (388,436)
6,286 18,238 13,520
16,845 106,883 -
4,316,217 5,015,345 4,105,450
- (250,000) -
1,060,000 - -
- (49,992) -
1,060,000 (299,992) -
(3,658,754) (3,435,952) (2,944,859)
(2,343,383) (397,113) (1,464,675)
629,471 - -
(5,272,666) (3,833,0865) (4,409,534)
103,551 882,288 (304,084)
811,957 29,669 333,753

$ 1,015,508 911,957 29,669




16. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
For those short-term instruments that generally mature in ninety days or less, the carrying value approximates fair value.

SECURITIES

Fair values for securities are based on either 1) quoted market prices, 2) dealer quotes, 3) a correspondent bank’s pricing
system, or 4) discounted cash flows to maturity. For certain securities, such as equity investments in the FHLB and Federal
Reserve Bank, and non-marketable obligations of political subdivisions, fair value is estimated to approximate amortized
cost.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently, fair values approximate carrying values. The fair values for other loans are
estimated through discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms
and credit quality.

DEPOSITS
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits, savings accounts and money market accounts are, by definition, equal to
the amounts payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying values).

The fair value of certificates of deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flow approach that applies interest rates
currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of the weighted-average expected monthly maturities.

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE (REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS)
These instruments bear both variable and fixed rates of interest. Therefore, the carrying value approximates fair value for
the variable rate instruments and the fair value of fixed rate instruments is based on discounted cash flows to maturity.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
These instruments bear a stated rate of interest to maturity and, therefore, the fair value is based on discounted cash flows
to maturity.

COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, the
counterparty’s credit standing and discounted cash flow analysis. The fair value of these commitments to extend credit
approximates the recorded amounts of the related fees and is not material at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE
For these short term instruments, the carrying value approximates fair value.

The estimated fair value of the Corporation’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows
(dollars in thousands):

2001 2000
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
FINANCIAL ASSETS: Amount Fair Value! Amount Fair Value!”
Cash and due from banks $ 29,023 29,023 26,726 26,726
Interest-bearing deposits 1,358 1,358 1,438 1,438
Securities 246,253 246,455 229,273 229,481
Net loans 418,677 434,981 389,864 389,914
Accrued interest receivable 4,363 4,363 4,266 4,266
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
Demand, savings, and insured
money market accounts $ 290,771 290,771 284,525 284,525
Time deposits 229,916 233,514 226,863 228,167
Repurchase agreements 78,457 81,574 49,407 49,768
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 37,600 38,109 33,400 33,104
Accrued interest payable 2,107 2,107 2,127 2,127
Dividends payable 912 912 887 887

(1) Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and, therefore, cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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17. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory -- and possibly additional discre-
tionary -- actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the consolidated financial state-
ments. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to quali-
tative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and the Bank to main-
tain minimum amounts and ratios {set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier
1 capital to average assets (all as defined in the applicable regulations). Management believes that, as of December 31,

2001 and 2000, the Corporation and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they were subject.

As of December 31, 2001, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank of New York categorized the Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized the Bank
must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There
have been no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s or the
Corporation’s capital category.

The actual capital amounts and ratios of the Corporation and the Bank are presented in the following table:

Actual Capital Required Ratios
Minimum Classification
Capital as Well
Amount Ratio Adequacy Capitalized
As of December 31, 2001
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $77,523,117 16.87% 8.00% 10.00%
Bank $73,183,569 16.04% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $69,533,164 15.13% 4.00% 6.00%
Bank $65,209,403 14.29% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Capita! (to Average Assets):
Consolidated $69,533,164 9.86% 3.00% 5.00%
Bank $65,209,403 9.30% 3.00% 5.00%
As of December 31, 2000
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $73,325,694 17.31% 8.00% 10.00%
Bank $68,618,632 16.34% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $65,613,026 15.49% 4.00% 6.00%
Bank $60,922,244 14.51% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets):
Consolidated $65,613,026 9.91% 3.00% 5.00%
Bank $60,922,244 9.25% 3.00% 5.00%
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